ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 10, 2010
1:31 p. m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bettye Davis, Chair
Senat or Joe Paskvan, Vice Chair
Senator Johnny Ellis

Senat or Joe Thomas

Senat or Fred Dyson

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

Board of Nursing
Nancy Bi envenue - Fairbanks

CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees
Laraine Derr - Anchorage
Mary Jane M chael - Anchorage
Carlton Smith - Juneau

CONFI RVATI ONS ADVANCED

St ate Medical Board

Dr. WIliam W Resinger - Pal ner
CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED
SENATE BI LL NO. 46
"An Act relating to child support awards made by a court; and
repealing Rule 90.3, Alaska Rules of Civil Procedure.”

- MOVED CSSB 46(HSS) OUT OF COWM TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 172

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -1- March 10, 2010



"An Act establishing the Alaska Health Care Conmi ssion in the

Department of Health and Social Services; and providing for
effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 46

SHORT TI TLE. CHI LD SUPPORT AWARDS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) KOOKESH

01/ 21/ 09 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 9/ 09

01/ 21/ 09 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 09 (S) HSS, JUD, FIN

03/ 01/ 10 (S) HSS AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 01/ 10 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 01/ 10 (S) M NUTE( HSS)

03/ 10/ 10 (S) HSS AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
BILL: SB 172

SHORT TITLE: ALASKA HEALTH CARE COMM SSI ON
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) OLSON

03/ 27/ 09 (S READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/ 27/ 09 (S) HSS, FIN

04/ 17/ 09 (S) HSS AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

04/ 17/ 09 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 18/ 09 (S) HSS AT 10: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

04/ 18/ 09 (S) -- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

02/ 03/ 10 (S) HSS AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 03/ 10 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 03/ 10 (S) M NUTE( HSS)

03/ 10/ 10 (S) HSS AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

NANCY Bl ENVENUE, Appoi nt ee

Board of Nursing

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Board
Nur si ng.

LARAI NE DERR, Appoi nt ee
Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees

an

of

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska Ment al

Heal th Trust Authority Board of Trustees.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 2- March 10, 2010



MARY JANE M CHAEL, Appoi ntee

Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska Ment al
Heal th Trust Authority Board of Trustees.

CARLTON SM TH, Appoi nt ee

Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska Ment al
Heal th Trust Authority Board of Trustees.

DR. WLLIAM W RESI NGER, Appoi ntee

St ate Medi cal Board

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the State Medi cal
Boar d.

SENATOR ALBERT KOOKESH

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of SB 46.

DOROTHY SHOCKLEY

Staff to Senator Kookesh

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Expl ai ned the changes in the CS for SB 46.

KEN ALPER, representing hinself
Juneau, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 46.

SENATOR DONALD OLSON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of SB 172

TOM OBERMEYER

Staff to Senator Davis

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned the changes in CS for SB 172.

JAMES J. JORDAN, Executive Director
Al aska State Medical Associ ation
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 172.

DEBORAH ERI CKSON, Executive Director
Al aska Heal th Care Comm ssi on (AHCC)

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 3- March 10, 2010



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 172 on behal f of
DHSS and AHCC.

JEFF JESSEE, CEO

Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority (AWVHTA)

sai d

POSI Tl ON STATEMENT: Testified that AWVHTA wants a seat on the
Al aska Health Care Conmm ssi on.

WAYNE STEVENS, President and CEO
Al aska State Chanber of Conmerce (ASCCO)
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 172

SHELLY HUGHES

Al aska Primary Care Associ ation (APCA)

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Thanked the commttee for adding a primry
care position to SB 172.

DENI SE LI CCl OLI

Staff to Senator O son

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided clarifying information related to
SB 172.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:31: 05 PM

CHAIR BETTYE DAVIS called the Senate Health and Social Services
Standing Committee neeting to order at 1:31 p.m Present at the
call to order were Senators Dyson, Paskvan and Davis.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

Board of Nursing
Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees
St at e Medi cal Board

CHAIR DAVI S announced conmmttee would hear from the governor's
appointees to the foregoing boards and conm ssions who were up
for confirmation.

1:33: 47 PM

NANCY BI ENVENUE, appoi ntee, Board of Nursing, said she is an RN
and is honored to be appointed and | ooks forward to serving.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -4- March 10, 2010



SENATOR PASKVAN noted that she is CEO of Care Net Pregnancy
Center and asked if wonen visit the center for nedical guidance.

MS. BI ENVENUE answered no; the clinic provides pregnancy testing
and confirmation of pregnancy by ultrasound exam but they also
provide a |lot of other services in terns of material assistance,
referral and information for wonmen facing an unplanned
pregnhancy.

SENATOR PASKVAN observed that a woman who suspects she m ght be
pregnant could go to Care Net seeking guidance on how best to
proceed on a nedi cal basis.

MS. BIENVENUE clarified that they would confirm her pregnancy,
but they don't offer other nedical services or advice. They help
a wonman explore her options for her pregnancy and give her any
informati on she is seeking.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if she has used her qualifications as a
nurse since she started working at Care Net in 2004.

M5. BIENVENUE replied that as a registered nurse she oversees
the nursing staff; a nedical director oversees all the nurses.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if her duties are primarily nursing
related or administrative and therefore non nursing.

M5. BIENVENUE replied they're primarily adm nistrative, but she
oversees the nurses and has an extensive background in wonen's
heal t h nursing.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked about Care Net's mni ssion statenent.

M5. BIENVENUE said it is "serving wonen, upholding life." This
is a faith-based organization that offers [life-affirmng
assi stance to wonen facing unplanned pregnancies. They also help
nmen and famlies facing this issue. They don't deny services to
anybody; all services are free and confidential. Care Net becane
a clinic tw years ago; prior to that they offered self-test
pregnancy testing.

SENATOR PASKVAN observed that the term "clinic" infers that it's

a nedical-related facility, but she's indicating that isn't the
case.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 5- March 10, 2010



M5. BIENVENUE replied they are licensed as a clinic and they
offer the Iimted nmedical service of ultrasound, overseen by the
medi cal director.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked what Care Net's goals or objectives are.

M5. BIENVENUE replied the goals are to assist wonen with the
utnost standard of care and truth and conpassion; the objectives
are to offer conpassionate care for wonen who are facing an
unpl anned pregnancy.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked what she neans by "truth.”

M5. BIENVENUE said it nmeans nedically accurate and truthful
information. She said her perspective is that a wonman facing an
unpl anned pregnancy needs to be fully informed of every issue
related to her pregnancy and this includes the visua
information of seeing an ultrasound of the unborn baby. She
cont i nued:

Wen she sees her child she often is, it helps her

make an infornmed decision and that decision we of

course hope will be for life, but regardl ess of what a
wonman chooses when she conmes to our center we support
her and help her. | mean we don't support necessarily

an abortion decision, but the woman is supported in
what she does in ternms of receiving conpassionate
care. And if a woman does choose abortion she's
wel conme to cone back to our center for assistance with
post-abortion healing if that's sonething she's
needi ng | ater on.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if the clinic's enploynent requirenents
are faith-based.

M5. BI ENVENUE answer ed yes, according to |aw.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if her personal faith-based beliefs
influence or Iimt the guidance or advice she gives.

VB. BIENVENUE replied they operate from a faith-based
perspective in terns of their operations and hiring practices.
It's allowed in the law and is a part of what they do at the
clinic, but that doesn't affect the service they provide.

1:42:51 PM
SENATOR ELLI S j oi ned the neeti ng.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 6- March 10, 2010



SENATOR PASKVAN asked if first-time visitors to Care Net
understand that it's a faith-based clinic.

MS. BI ENVENUE answered yes; they don't hide this information.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if she sees any conflict between the Care
Net objectives and the Board of Nursing objectives.

M5. BI ENVENUE replied she doesn't see a conflict.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if she understands that the objectives of
the Board of Nursing may be nore conprehensive than those of her
personal faith-based val ue system

MS. BI ENVENUE answer ed yes.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked how she relates to nurses working in
settings other than Care Net.

MS. BIENVENUE said she relates on a collegial basis. She added
that she hasn't always worked in a faith-based setting.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if she is active in any local nursing
or gani zat i ons.

MS. Bl ENVENUE answer ed no.

1:45:26 PM
CHAIR DAVIS informed Ms. Bienvenue that her nane will go forward
and that voting will take place at a later date. The action of

the commttee today in no way obligates a nenber to vote either
for or against the appointee.

M5. BIENVENUE asked if her appointnent to the Alaska Mental
Heal th Trust Authority is on the agenda today.

CHAI R DAVI S suggested she contact Boards and Commi ssions because
she doesn't have that information

1:47:07 PM
CHAI R DAVI S announced the next appointnent is Lorraine Derr to
the Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees

LARAI NE DERR, appointee, Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority
Board of Trustees, said she is wup for reappointnent; she
currently serves as chair of the finance commttee and vice-
chair of the trust. She said she enjoys serving although it's a

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -7- March 10, 2010



heady responsibility to be one of just seven nenbers wth
responsi bility over 964,000 acres of land and $324 nmillion.

CHAI R DAVI S asked how nany years she has served on the trust.
M5. DERR replied four years.

1:48: 35 PM
SENATOR ELLIS asked what she hopes to acconplish in this next
term

M5. DERR replied there are several projects under way and
they're also trying to develop policies for the trust |and
office. One project she's interested in is to exchange forestry
| ands around conmunities for logged land on Prince of Wiles
| sl and. Because the trust mssion is to provide for nental
health prograns in perpetuity, banking |ogged land now wl|
yield forested land in 40 or 50 years. The proposed building on
trust land on the Juneau waterfront is part of another project
that entails putting trust resources to use in order to provide
nmoney for nental health prograns in years to conme. As the
| ongest tenured nenber of the trust, she said she |ooks forward
to continuing to help build a team of trustees.

1:51: 35 PM

SENATOR ELLI S asked if the trust considers nmatters such as being
a good neighbor when it makes decisions about how to use its
| and resources to produce revenue in perpetuity. Noting that
| egi sl ators' phones start to ring when the trust is in conflict
wi th conservation groups or a conmmunity, he asked how the trust
nodul ates those conflicts for the long-term health and
reputation of the trust.

M5. DERR replied the trust has been a good nei ghbor; they have
worked with affected comunities to reduce the inpacts when they
sold or developed |land. Going forward they need to |ook at new
ventures and different revenue opportunities. This year the
trust has about $24.7 mllion in the budget in direct grants to
the various trust beneficiaries.

SENATOR ELLIS said he appreciates that the trust mssion is to
produce revenue for the core beneficiaries of the trust, but he
wonders if the board has a set of core values that guide the
deci sions to devel op trust | ands.

1: 54: 33 PM

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 8- March 10, 2010



M5. DERR replied they do have guiding principles. The chair
reads them at each neeting and they're followed closely.
Certainly there are struggles wthin the board because they all
comre from different backgrounds, but they keep the needs of
their beneficiaries before themat all tines.

CHAI R DAVI S t hanked Ms. Derr for her service.

1:55:53 PM

MARY JANE M CHAEL, appointee, Alaska Mental Heal th  Trust
Authority Board of Trustees, said she has served alnobst a year
to fill a vacancy. She serves on the resource conmittee so she's
been focused on learning about trust |ands and other avail able
resources, but she's also interested in |ooking at ways to help
the beneficiaries in ways other than by funding prograns. For
exanple, she's interested in |ooking at using trust |ands for
af fordabl e housing devel opnents. She related that she's also
been sonmewhat involved in the Redroof Inn project. In conclusion
she said she has been proud to serve on the board and I ooks
forward to continui ng.

1: 58: 50 PM
SENATOR ELLIS asked what she hopes to acconplish in the next
term

M5. M CHAEL said she believes that there is a lot of untapped
opportunity and she hopes to help the trust focus on resource
devel opnent fromtheir | ands.

SENATOR ELLIS noted that M. Derr indicated that the easy
opportunities to generate funds for the trust have been taken

and observed that this inplies that the trust will have to push
projects that have nore inherent conflict. He asked what core
principles will guide her and the board generally in managing

these conflicts as they develop the trust |ands to produce
revenue.

2:00: 56 PM

M5. MCHAEL said she believes there are untapped investnent
opportunities to produce revenue, including using trust
resources to invest in other Jlands that produce revenue.

Certainly the primary goal is to generate revenue to benefit the
beneficiaries, but the board agrees that it has to listen to the
public and coll aborate with the affected comunities.

CHAIR DAVIS thanked Ms. Mchael for her service and said her
name will be forwarded.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -9- March 10, 2010



2:03:49 PM

CARLTON SM TH, appointee, Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority
Board of Trustees, said he has a 25 year career in commerci al
real estate nostly in Anchorage; his Juneau firm advises clients
nati onwi de with bal ance sheet values of at least $5 million. He
provided a brief professional resume and said he believes he can
bring value to the board particularly in the area of real estate
policy developnent. He related that a nmenber of his famly was a
beneficiary of the trust for many years and that drives his
interest in the issues facing the trust. But what really appeals
is that the trust is a young organization and thus a dynanic
managenent nodel. He understands the conplexities of the m ssion
and is very interested in working with the trust.

2:07: 01 PM
SENATOR THOMAS j oi ned t he neeting.

CHAIR DAVIS thanked M. Smith for his interest in the position
and said his nanme woul d be forwarded.

2:07:30 PM

DR, WLLIAM W RESI NGER, appointee, State Medical Board, said he
has been a board nenber since 2007. He considers it an honor to
serve and is happy to serve a second term He infornmed the
committee that he has been a physician in Al aska since noving to
the state in 1984; in 2001 he began practicing part tine.

2:09: 54 PM

CHAIR DAVI S thanked Dr. Resinger for his service and said his
name woul d be forwarded for a vote by the full body.

At ease from2:10 p.m to 2:11 p. m

SB  46-CH LD SUPPORT AWARDS

CHAIR DAVIS announced consideration of SB 46. It was heard
previ ously.

2:11: 08 PM

SENATOR ALBERT KOOKESH, sponsor of SB 46, said the changes that
he agreed to during the previous hearing were placed in the
proposed committee substitute (CS) and copies have been
di stributed to the nmenbers.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 10- March 10, 2010



SENATOR PASKVAN noved to adopt the work draft conmittee CS for
SB 46, |abeled 26-LS0279\P, as the working docunent. There being
no objection, version P was before the commttee.

2:13:11 PM

DOROTHY SHOCKLEY, staff to Senator Kookesh, explained the
foll owi ng changes: [Unless otherw se stipulated, the page and
line references relate to version S.]

Page 5, line 13: Delete $100,000 and insert $105, 000.

Page 6, line 21: Followng "or other neans." insert the
sentence "A court shall find that health insurance is
available only if a dependent child has reasonable
geographic access to the covered services or the insurance
includes the coverage of transportation needed for the
services."

Page 6, lines 21-25: Following "or other nmeans." delete the
| anguage from subsection (a) and insert on line 29 in
subsection (b).

Page 6, lines 28-31 and page 7, lines 1-8. delete from
subsection (b) and insert in new subsection (c).

Page 7, line 9: Subsection (c) is renunbered to becone
subsection (d) in version P

Page 7, lines 20-25 in version P. Insert new subsection (e)

contai ning the follow ng | anguage:
A court shall find that the cost of cash
medi cal support or private health insurance
is reasonable under this section if the cost
to the responsible parent does not exceed
five percent of the responsible parent's
gross incone. In calculating the percentage
for purposes of health insurance coverage,
the cost is the cost of adding the dependent
child to the existing insurance coverage or
the difference between self-only and fanmly

cover age.
Page 7, |lines 17-18: Subsection (d) in version \S is
rewitten and beconmes subsection (f) on page 7, lines 26-31

of version P. It is  rewitten as follows:
(f) I'n this section,

(1) "cash nedical support” neans
an anmount ordered to be paid toward the cost
of health insurance provided by a public
entity or by anot her par ent t hr ough
enpl oynment or otherw se, or for other
medi cal costs not covered by insurance;

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -11- March 10, 2010



(2) "heal t h care expenses”
i ncl udes nedical, dental, vision, and nental
heal t h counsel i ng expenses.

e Page 7, Iline 24: Followwng "party's initial pleading”
insert "in superior court".

» Page 8, line 20: Delete "tribunal" and insert "court".

e Page 8, line 27: Following "outstanding support order."

insert "An award may be nodified to require cash nedica
support regardless of whether insurance is available to
either parent if neither parent has purchased health

i nsurance. "

e Page 8, line 28: Following "insurance paynents" insert "or
cash nedi cal support™".

 Page 8, line 29: Delete "tribunal" and insert "court".

e Page 10, line 5: Delete "tribunal" and insert "court".

e Page 11, line 18: Delete "NON APPLICABILITY" and insert

" NONAPPLI CABI LI TY".

2:17: 43 PM
SENATOR OLSON j oi ned the conmitt ee.

SENATOR KOOKESH said he agrees with the changes that were made
and he'd be grateful if the commttee would nove the bill.

2:18: 51 PM

KEN ALPER, representing hinself, said he is a local business
owner testifying in support of SB 46. He and his wife enploy 20-
25 enployees and they receive on average five to ten child-
support garni shnent orders per year. A $1,000 to $1,500 order is
not unusual for an enpl oyee who grosses about $1,500 per nonth
but it is unusual for an enployee to stay on the payroll once
the child support garnishnment goes into effect. They typically
nove on to stay ahead of the order and that's part of the
problem that the sponsor is trying to reconcile. He said he
respects the need to care for these children, but when the state
takes so nuch from | owwage enployees it reduces their stability
and opportunity to advance thensel ves.

2:21:16 PM
SENATOR PASKVAN asked what the statute would do that the court
rule isn't currently doing.

MR. ALPER replied it's his understanding that the 40 percent

nunber would be reduced to a smaller nmaxi num percentage. It
woul d vary dependi ng on the nunber of children.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -12- March 10, 2010



SENATOR PASKVAN said he'd like the adm nistration to answer that
guestion because that's not his understanding.

STACEY STEI NBERG Chief Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Collections
and Support Section, GCvil D vision, Departnment of Law (D),
stated that as currently proposed, SB 46 w Il not address how
much is taken out of an enployee's paycheck when he/she owes
child support.

MS. SCHOCKLEY added that once the court rule is in statute, it
will be easier to make changes and the people who are affected
wi Il have better access.

CHAI R DAVI S cl osed public testinony.

2:25:40 PM

SENATOR PASKVAN noved to report CS for SB 46, |abeled 26-
LS0279\P, from conmttee wth individual recomendations and
acconpanying zero fiscal note(s). There being no objection CSSB
46(HSS) noved from the Senate Health and Social Services
St andi ng Comm ttee.

SB 172- ALASKA HEALTH CARE COW SSI ON

2:26: 28 PM
CHAIR DAVIS announced consideration of SB 172. It was heard
previ ously.

SENATOR DONALD COLSQN, sponsor of SB 172 said the bill relates to
the authorization of the Alaska Health Care Comm ssion. This
will be a permanent conmm ssion to address health care issues and
rising health care costs. He noted that a proposed conmttee
substitute (CS) was distributed to nenbers.

CHAIR DAVIS asked M. bernmeyer to review the changes
represented in the proposed CS

2:28:17 PM

TOM OBERMEYER, staff to Senator Davis, said the only substantive
di fference between the proposed CS and the original bill is on
page 3, line 6, relating to the conposition and nenbership of
the comm ssion under Sec. 18.09.020. Version S designates that
there will be 12 commi ssion nenbers; nine voting nmenbers will be
appoi nted by the governor, including the state nedical director
as chair, and three nonvoting nenbers will be ex officio nenbers
from the House, the Senate, and Ofice of the Governor. The
original bill designated a 10 nenber conm ssion.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 13- March 10, 2010



2:30: 51 PM

SENATOR PASKVAN noved to adopt the work draft CS for SB 172,
| abel ed 26-LS0790\S, as the working document. There being no
obj ection, version S was before the conmttee.

CHAIR DAVIS pointed out that the CS designates the nedical

examner as chair but it doesn't identify who will fill the
other seats. A separate handout proposes the organizations or
groups they mght represent, but the designations will be nmde

followng conmttee discussion and public testinony. She noted
that the conm ssioner of the Departnent of Health and Social
Services (DHSS) wote to ask that the comm ssion remain small
and to suggest that if the nenbership is increased that the new
nmenbers should represent [primary care physicians and the
behavi oral health provider commnity.] It was the sponsor who
recomended adding two nmenbers for a total of 12, she said.

SENATOR DYSON observed that this seens to be a good way to
handle it.

2:34:28 PM

JAMES J. JORDAN, Executive Director, Alaska State Medica
Associ ation, said ASMA represents physicians statew de and they
support creating the Al aska Health Care Conm ssion in statute.
However, they would like the commttee to consider physician
representation on this conm ssion, both general practitioners
and general surgeons. He opined that physicians need to be at
the table helping develop Al aska' s conprehensive statew de
heal th care policy and hel ping the commssion fulfill its duties
in developing the strategies necessary to inprove the health of
al | Al askans.

SENATOR DYSON asked if one of the voting nenbers should have
significant experience in rural Al aska or does he believe that
the physician representation he suggested would adequately
represent the nedical delivery teanms in rural Al aska.

MR. JORDAN said he believes that the general practitioner could
represent the health care professionals that are part of the
heal thcare delivery team particularly with tel emedicine.

2:38:02 PM

SENATOR PASKVAN observed that the proposed position nunber 8
designates a prinmary care physician who is licensed to practice
in the state and is board certified. He asked if board

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -14- March 10, 2010



certification is a neaningful requirenent and if ASMA has a
position on that.

MR. JORDAN replied it's becom ng unconmon to find primary care
physi cians who are not board certified in Al aska. He described
the requirenment as forward looking in light of the novenent to
require board certification and continuing renewals in
Iicensures and certifications of conpetence.

CHAIR DAVIS said she'd like the admnistration to speak to that
because it was their recomrendation.

2:40: 10 PM

DEBORAH ERI CKSON, Executive Director, Al aska Health Care
Comm ssion (AHCC), said she works wthin the Departnent of
Health and Social Services (DHSS) and she is speaking today on
behal f of both DHSS and AHCC. She confirmed that DHSS suggested
the language related to the additional seat for a prinmary care
physician who practices famly nedicine, primary care interna
medi ci ne, or pediatric nedicine in the state. Because it's very
rare now for sonmebody to be practicing and licensed wthout
having board certification in any of these fields, DHSS would
have no objection to adding clarifying |anguage that the
i ndi vidual practicing would also be required to have board
certification in that particular field.

2:42: 02 PM
SENATOR PASKVAN asked if she said the departnment wouldn't mnd
if the board certification requirenent were renoved.

M5. ERICKSON replied DHSS doesn't have a concern with either
addi ng or | eavi ng out t he provi si on requiring board
certification.

CHAIR DAVIS said the commttee needs to discuss and make a
decision on that matter. She asked if she's seen the list the
committee is considering.

M5. ERI CKSON answer ed no.

CHAIR DAVIS said it was her intention to take testinobny on the
proposed list of comm ssion nenbers before naking a decision
about what to put in the final CS.

M5. ERICKSON said she'd like to first speak to the AHCC

recommendati on about the size of the commssion. The AHCC
January report included a recomendation for a permanent

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -15- March 10, 2010



comi ssi on est abl i shed in statute and responsi bl e for
conprehensi ve, sustained, accountable, and transparent health
system inprovenent planning for the state. They specifically
recommended that the commssion remain the sane size as the
exi sting comm ssion, which is seven voting and three ex officio
menbers. AHCC made that recommendation wth the specific
understanding that there was sonme support for a larger body. The
concern is that a larger conmssion wuld not facilitate
communi cation and decision making and that it mght in fact
function nore as an advocacy body. Thus, for reasons of
efficiency and the function of the group, AHCC wanted to state
on the record that the existing body worked well.

2:45: 30 PM

M5. ERICKSON said the Departnent of Health and Social Services
al so believes that the comm ssion should maintain a relatively
smal | size, but the two additional seats would be acceptable. If
these are added, DHSS recomrends that they be designated for a
primary care physician and a representative from the behaviora
health provider comunity. Although they're sonmewhat different
t han DHSS suggested, she believes that the departnent would find
the descriptions for the primary care physician and the
behavi oral heal th provi der acceptabl e.

2:46: 57 PM

JEFF JESSEE, CEO Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority (AVHTA)
said AVHTA wants a seat at the table too. He is famliar wth
the struggle to keep a group small enough to be functional and
still represent all of the necessary aspects adequately so
decisions are fully inforned and representative of the issues
that need to be considered. Wile he's pleased that there is
interest in adding behavioral health representation to the
conm ssion, he believes that it's critical to have someone who
has a system w de perspective. He confirnmed this wth
Comm ssi oner Hogan and he expected the DHSS representative to
convey that the departnent would support the behavioral health
representative bei ng a representative of AVHTA. That
representative mght be a provider or an admnistrator of an
organi zation but they would be able to represent the interests
of the behavioral health system and have a systemc view of this
issue. This would bring the type of expertise and information
t hat woul d be nost hel pful to the conm ssion, he concl uded.

SENATOR DYSON asked if the nental health community woul d include
peopl e who deal wi th substance abuse.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 16- March 10, 2010



MR. JESSEE answered vyes; the term behavioral health is
universally used to denote both nental health and substance
abuse.

2:51: 01 PM

WAYNE STEVENS, President and CEO  Alaska State Chanber of
Commerce (ASCC), related that he has served as a nenber of the
Health Care Comm ssion for the past vyear. This tenporary
commi ssion expires this year and while it began to address many
rel evant issues, it doesn't have tinme to address them to the
degree required. Al aska's health care system needs adjustnent in
order to provide cost effective, quality access to residents and
the best first step to address these issues is to establish in
statute the Alaska Health Care Conmm ssion. Experts and
representatives of key stakehol ders appointed to this body wll
forma plan to realign the system The Al aska State Chanber of
Commerce supports a permanent conmmssion that wll provide
recommendations to the governor and Legislature that will result
in a health care system that provides quality and affordable
access to all Alaskans. The ASCC al so supports including seats
on the comm ssion for the state chanber and for primary care.

2:53:29 PM
SENATOR DYSON asked if he has a specific nmenber to recomend.

MR. STEVENS replied he isn't seeking a seat for hinself and he
doesn't have a specific recommendati on, but he does believe that
the business community needs representation because it is a
significant contributor to the health care system He added that
he has an interest in the health care community and served on
the Kodiak hospital board for about 14 years. And as a
representative of the business conmunity he has an interest and
under standing of how to control and contain costs. According to
testimony the comm ssion received, there are four basic parts to
the cost equation in the drivers of health care: 50 percent is
personal responsibility; 20 percent is the environnment in which
you live; 20 percent is genetics; and 10 percent is the cost of
access to health care. Wien you' re not addressing the | argest
part of the problem it's not productive to argue about the
smal | est part of the problem he concl uded.

2:56:51 PM

SHELLY HUGHES, Alaska Primary Care Association (APCA), thanked
the commttee for adding a primary care position to the bill
She echoed M. Jessee's statenent that a representative with a
system perspective would benefit the conm ssion nore than say a
solo practice physician who is focused on patient care. APCA

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -17- March 10, 2010



could provide this perspective for nedical, basic dental
behavior health, and the many prinmary care provider type
positions. Wile the position could be filled by a physician,
adm ni strators sonetinmes have a better overall sense of what
works in the overall system she said. Because primary care is
so key to costs and prevention, it's inportant to have soneone
with this system approach, she concl uded.

CHAIR DAVIS said she would take direction from the nenbers and
the sponsor with respect to the proposed |ist of representatives
before she had a new CS drafted.

2:59: 05 PM

SENATOR COLSON said he agrees that a |arge conm ssion could be
unwi el dy, but busy schedul es can nmake it difficult to get enough
people to a neeting to get a fair cross section, particularly
with health care providers. Referencing the earlier discussion
about board certification, he said he doesn't support that idea.
Anot her concern relates to the governor nmaking the appointnents
because it vests too nmuch power in that office. He asked the
commttee to consider the alternatives.

CHAIR DAVIS said she and the comrittee would take that into
consideration, but the governor wouldn't have full control
because people would submt their application and the governor
woul d have to select fromthe I|ist.

3:03:12 PM

DENI SE LICCIOLl, Staff to Senator O son, referenced an earlier
st at enment t hat t he sponsor asked for t he conmi ssi on
representatives listed on the handout and said that's correct
for the first seven positions but not eight and nine. The
sponsor clarified that he doesn't support the requirenent for
board certification for position eight and for position nine the
sponsor requested a nenber from the Al aska Mental Health Trust
Aut hority.

CHAIR DAVI S held SB 172 in comm ttee.
3:04: 50 PM
There being no further business to conme before the commttee

Chair Davis adjourned the Senate Health and Social Services
Standing Conmttee hearing at 3:04 p. m

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 18- March 10, 2010



